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The group of buildings known as French Farm is located in the Town 
of Greenwich at the north side of the intersection formed by the 
junction of Round Hill Road on the west and Lake Road on the east, 
The 35 acre property, which slopes downward from east to west, 
consists of both open and wooded acreage.

The main structure, a large manor house [1906], is approached from 
the east by a long, winding tr?ee-lined drive. This house is of 
frame construction sided in clapboard with a medium pitched roof 
sheathed in asphalt shingles. fttost impressive is the two story 
columned portico crowned by a pudiment. The wings of the house extend 
on both sides to cover approximately 160 feet.

A country cottage [1911] is located to the northeast of the main 
house. It is a one-sn-a-half story stuccoed house with a bellcast 
gable roof. The gabled dormers on the east [main] roof flank con­ 
tain "gothic tracery" muntins in round-headed windows. The long, 
low roof profile suggests an eclecticism influenced by the building 
traditions found in warmer climates.

To the east of the cottage is a single building used as a garage and 
apartment [1911], This simple two-story structure has long shed 
dormers in the east and west i'oof flanks. A greenhouse extends 
from the south wall, its ridgeline parallel to that of the stucco 
section. \ ,

North and east of the garage-apartment is a barn and silo [1915], 
the scale of which is rather diminutive in relation to barns and 
silos on a typical farm. The exterior walls of the barn are coated 
in stucco of white cement, The si-10' is made of white-painted sheet 
metal encircled by steel cable bands, and its conical roof of standing 
seam metal construction is topped by a conical ventillator cap. The 
windows are casement, divided into small panes.

A chicken coop, north of the barn and sile, is faced in white-painted 
cement stucco. The coop is a small low building, stark and func­ 
tional, with casement windows. It provides a fitting termination to 
the farm complex of many buildings which is given unity by a uniformly 
diminutive scale and a common facade treatment of white cement stucco.

A carriage house and stable were destroyed by fire in 1917.

Behind the cottage is a large vegetable and flower garden. About ten 
apple trees planted in somewhat random fashion west of the garden do 
not constitute an orchard, but they continue the rural character 
which is so obvious in the architecture.
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French Farm reflects a lifestyle and social ideal of the early 20th 
Century upper class in southwestern Connecticut* The 35 acre pas­ 
toral retreat provided for the owners a haven from the fast pace of 
urban life in New York City, although the farm was still located close 
enough to allow easy travel to the metropolis. The main house was 
built in 1906 by the architect Henry Van Buren Magonigle for H.W. 
Lanier. The farm buildings on the estate were also designed by Henry 
Van Buren Magonigle at the request of Mr. and Mrs. John French, who 
bought the property from- Lanier in 1907. The property is an example 
of the successful marriage of landscape design and architecture which 
Frederick Law Olmstead espoused as an ideal in the late 19th Century.

Magonigle's early training with Calvert Vaux Conce a partner of 
Olmstead] is expressed in the magnificent landscaping along the 
drive and surrounding the manor house. The landscaping around the 
farm buildings, however, is simpler and more country-like.

The fruits of Magonigle's formal training in the firm of McKim, Mead 
and White are realized in his solid stately farm buildings, 
which form a compact well-proportioned group. Together, the property 
and farm buildings form a harmonious farmscape which impresses the 
viewer with its deliberately relaxing rural atmosphere.

Originally situated in a rather rural area, French Farm is now 
surrounded by the expanding suburban town of Greenwich. Due to the 
preservation of its original plan, however, French Farm has retained 
its pastoral aspect, a rare find in southwestern Connecticut today.
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